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LINDSAY L. LIDDELL

Deputy District Attorney

Nevada State Bar Number 14079
ELIZABETH HICKMAN

Deputy District Attorney

Nevada State Bar Number 11598
One South Sierra Street

Reno, NV 89501

(775) 337-5700
lliddell@da.washoecounty.gov
ehickman(@da.washoecounty.gov
REPRESENTING DEFENDANTS
JAMIE RODRIGUEZ, WASHOE
COUNTY REGISTRAR OF VOTERS,
ERIC BROWN, ALEXIS HILL,
and WASHOE COUNTY

FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF NEVADA

CARSON CITY
* %%
ROBERT BEADLES, an individual,
Plaintiff, Case No. 23-0C-00105 1B
VS. Dept No. D1

JAMIE RODRIGUEZ, in her official
capacity as Registrar of Voters and in her
personal capacity; the WASHOE COUNTY
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS, a government
agency; ERIC BROWN in his official
capacity as WASHOE COUNTY
MANAGER and in his personal capacity,
ALEXIS HILL in her official capacity as
CHAIRWOMAN OF WASHOE
COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS and in her personal
capacity; WASHOE COUNTY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada, and
DOES I-X; and ROE CORPORATIONS I-
X.

Defendants.

DEFENDANTS’ OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S SECOND MOTION TO

CHANGE VENUE
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Defendants, by and through counsel, Deputy District Attorney Lindsay Liddell,
hereby oppose the Motion to Change Venue filed by Plaintiff Robert Beadles (“Beadles”)
on September 21, 2023. This Opposition is based on the following Memorandum of Points
and Authorities and all papers and pleadings on file with this Court.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I. INTRODUCTION

In his efforts to purportedly secure a fair trial, Beadles filed a second Motion to
Change Venue on September 21, 2023, requesting transfer of this case from Carson City to
Lyon County. ! Mot. to Change Venue.

A District Judge in Washoe County determined on September 13, 2023, that
transferring venue to Carson City neutralized any impartiality that may have existed in
Washoe County while maintaining a venue that is convenient for the parties and witnesses.
Order Granting Change of Venue. Although all legitimate claims of prejudice were mitigated
by the transfer to Carson City, Beadles again argues that this Court should transfer the case
to Lyon County.? Mot. to Change Venue. Supporting his assertion that a Carson City jury
would be biased, Beadles bolds his argument that impartial Washoe County citizens who
work in Carson may “tell the tales to voters of Carson City.” Mot. to Change Venue at p. 4.

While asserting tenuous claims of prejudice seeping from Washoe County to

Carson City, Beadles makes the outlandish suggestion that the Lyon County District Court,

! This motion is procedural improper and could be denied on that basis, although it also lacks merit.
Issues once heard and disposed of will not be renewed in the same cause except by leave of court granted
upon motion.” FJDCR 3.13(a). Plaintiff already requested and received a change of venue in this case.

2 Demonstrating that Beadles is forum shopping rather than seeking to obtain a fair trial, he includes the
following request: “If this honorable court will not move the case to Lyon County, please return it back to
Judge Drakulich’s custody as Washoe County is preferable to relocating it to Carson City, for the sake of the
appearance of justice, if nothing else.” Motion to Change Venue, p. 19. The Motion to Change Venue should
be denied because an impartial trial can occur in Carson City. Plaintiff’s preferred venue is irrelevant, and his
request to have the case transferred back to Washoe County after previously arguing that he could not secure
a fair trial in Washoe County establishes that his Motions to Change Venue are simply manipulative efforts.




O o0 N O ook W N

N N N N N N N M e e e e e e e
(o) NN B S O S = TN o R - R N BN e ) W & B N S O =)

whose location the Lyon County Commission recently named the Donald J. Trump Justice
Complex,* would be the most impartial venue for this case involving allegations of election
fraud. Motion to Change Venue, p. 3, p. 25, Ex. 155, p. 2. He omits that the same media
sources available to Washoe County and Carson City are available to residents of Lyon
County. Moreover, the Reno Gazette Journal owns the “weekly newspapers that serve
Yerington, Fernley and Dayton.” Ex. 1. Beadles provides no evidence to support his claims
regarding Lyon County’s ability to provide a fair trial.

The Motion should be denied. It is another attempt to frivolously forum shop. There
is no basis to change venue to Lyon County. Beadles’s causes of action do not entitle him to
a jury trial. Beadles fails to show that Carson City cannot facilitate an impartial proceeding.
Instead, as Beadles describes “Carson City serves as the epicenter of political affairs in
Carson City,” making it an appropriate venue for this highly political case.

II. THE MOTION SHOULD BE DENIED.

A. THERE IS NO BASIS TO CHANGE VENUE TO LYON COUNTY.

NRS 13.050(2)(b) permits a Court to change the place of a civil trial when “there is
reason to believe that an impartial trial cannot be had” in the county where the complaint
was filed. Beadles argues an impartial trial cannot be had in Carson City, because the
Defendants “maintain personal and professional relationships in Carson City” and
“Plaintiff has been erroneously portrayed as the ‘Godfather of Election Reform’ and
maligned as a right-wing conspiracy theorist, characterizations that are patently false.”
Mot. for Change of Venue, at p. 2. A District Judge already deemed Carson City an

appropriate venue that mitigates any prejudice caused by pre-trial media coverage of this

EINT3

3 This action may have unconstitutionally interfered with the Lyon County Courts’ “ability to perform [their]
core constitutional functions.” See City of Sparks v. Sparks Mun. Court, 129 Nev. 348, 364-65, 302 P.3d
1118, 1129-30 (2013). Naming a court’s building after a polarizing politician arguably may have the effect of
impugning the appearance of impartiality and may indirectly manifest bias toward a political affiliation. At
minimum, it seems to have encouraged a litigant, Beadles, to pursue a venue change in a highly political case
involving accusations of elections fraud.
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case or the status of the parties in Washoe County. Order Granting Change of Venue.
Beadles’s reassertion of essentially the same arguments, targeted toward the new venue, fall
far short of demonstrating that an impartial trial cannot be secured in Carson City.

Beadles provides no evidence regarding Lyon County to support his allegation that
he will have “the best opportunity for an unbiased trial” in Lyon County. See Mot. at p. 3.
He erroneously claims Defendants consented to venue in Lyon County. To be clear,
Defendants oppose a venue change to Lyon County. This would be burdensome and
inconvenient, including by forcing Defendants to travel over an hour to hand-file
documents or appear in any proceedings.

1. Beadles’s Causes of Action do not Entitle him to a Jury Trial.

The primary purpose of entertaining a change of venue on the grounds off
impartiality is to avoid a biased jury pool. See e.g., Nat’l Collegiate Athletic Ass’n v. Tarkanian,
113 Nev. 610, 613-14, 939 P.2d 1049, 1051-52 (1997); Sicor, Inc. v. Hutchison, 127 Nev. 904,
266 P.3d 608 (2011).

Two causes of action are identified in Beadles’s Complaint: (1) an alleged violation of]

M«

constitutional rights regarding unanswered “petitions,” “equitable and injunctive relief]
sought or writ of mandamus,” and (2) an action to remove Defendants under NRS 283.440.
The first cause of action is an equitable claim. “[T]he right to a jury trial does not extend to
equitable maters.” Awada v. Shuffle Master, Inc., 123 Nev. 613, 618, 173 P.3d 707, 710 (2007).
Likewise, there is no right to a jury trial for a writ of mandamus, but the Court may order a
jury trial in its discretion. NRS 34.220. The second cause of action, a removal proceeding,
is a summary proceeding without the right to a jury. Jones v. Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct. of State, 67
Nev. 404, 418, 219 P.2d 1055, 1062 (1950).

Notwithstanding that neither cause of action is viable, neither cause of action

provides Beadles the right to a jury trial. His concerns relating to the impartiality of a jury

made up of Carson City residents are immaterial. Even if the causes of action were viable,




O o0 N O ook W N

N N N N N N N M e e e e e e e
(o) NN B S O S = TN o R - R N BN e ) W & B N S O =)

they would not be heard by a jury. There is no basis to transfer venue in this case, which
will result in a bench trial if it is not dismissed prior to that point.
2. Beadles has not Demonstrated that a Change of Venue from Carson City is
Warranted.

Judges are presumed to be unbiased. Millen v. Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct. ex. Rel. Cnty. of
Clark, 122 Nev. 1245, 1254, 148 P.3d 694, 701 (2006). Additionally, “the bias and prejudice
of the judge is not a ground for change of venue, unless expressly made so by statute.” State
v. Second Jud. Dist. Ct. in & for Washoe Cnty., Dep’t 2, 52 Nev. 379, 287 P. 957, 960 (1930).

Plaintiff’s unsupported allegations in this case extend beyond the Complaint. While
arguing that he has unfairly been characterized as a conspiracy theorist, Plaintiff does little
to rebut this portrayal by making baseless assertions including: “Plaintiff has it on good
authority that there are several conflicts between the defendants, defense, and these 2 most
Honorable Judges. The Plaintiff does not wish to make public record of the allegations and
hopes the most Honorable Judges will do what’s right if conflicts exist and simply transfer
this case to Lyon County or recuse themselves from the case.” Mot. to Change Venue at p. 24.

Although judges are presumed to be unbiased, even if hypothetically a judicial officer
lacked the impartiality to oversee a case, the remedy would be recusal or disqualification of
the judge, not a change of venue. Beadles’s allegations of Judicial bias do not support his
Motion to Change Venue.

Next, in evaluating a pre-voir dire change of venue motion, the Court considers five
factors: “(1) the nature and extent of pretrial publicity; (2) the size of the community; (3)
the nature and gravity of the lawsuit; (4) the status of the plaintiff and defendant in the
community; and (5) the existence of political overtones in the case.” Nat’l Collegiate Athletic
Ass'n, 113 Nev. at 613-14, 939 P.2d. at 1051-52 (citing People v. Hamilton, 48 Cal.3d 1142,
774 P.2d 730 (1989)).

//
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In the present case, there has been some media coverage of both the Complaint and
Defendants’ response.* However, Beadles cannot demonstrate that the media coverage has
been so one-sided and pervasive that it warrants a change of venue. To demonstrate
prejudice, Beadles appears to argue that anyone who reads the newspaper in Northern
Nevada or watches a local news channel should be presumed to be unfairly prejudiced
against him.®> Motion to Chance Venue, p. 14-17. He claims there is media bias against him,
but a prior-filed exhibit shows a media member contacting him to obtain his comment
before running a story about him. Beadles’s Exhibit I to his first Motion to Change Venue filed
August 13, 2023.

Admittedly, news sources such as the Reno Gazette Journal or Nevada Appeal and
news channels including KOLO, KRNV, or KTVN may extend to people throughout
Northern Nevada — almost certainly citizens of Carson City and Lyon County receive
some of their news through these sources. But a cluster of stories covering this lawsuit,
primarily distributed for a short period in mid-August, is not the sort of pre-trial publicity
that warrants a change of venue. Any risk of prejudice relating to the coverage of this
lawsuit against Washoe County Officials has already been remedied by the Second Judicial
District Court’s transfer of the case to Carson City. Moreover, the Reno Gazette Journal
owns popular media outlets in Lyon County. Ex. /. Lyon County residents have likely been
exposed to the same media coverage as other Northern Nevada residents. See id. The first

factor does not support another change of venue.

4 Beadles continues to argue, “Defendants have inappropriately shared non-public records with the
media.” Contrary to Beadles’s assertion, Defendants’ Motion for Sanctions, was a public record under NRS
Chapter 239 once served to Beadles. He also falsely claims “the defense” is “working in concert” with the
media, and that the Reno Gazette Journal received a copy of the proposed Motion for Sanctions before
Beadles. On the contrary, a courtesy copy of the motion was provided to Beadles via email on August 8,
2023, at 1:42 p.m., prior to media obtaining the same. Ex. 2; Beadles’s Exhibit 1 to his first Motion to Change
Venue filed August 13, 2023. Additionally, undersigned counsel has not spoken to the media regarding this case.

5> He includes artificial intelligence Google Bard output regarding news viewership in Carson City. This is
both inadmissible and unreliable. See NRS 50.285; NRS 52.015; NRS 51.065.
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The second factor is the size of the community. Carson City has approximately
58,000 people. Motion to Change Venue, p. 21. Beadles argues, “in this city of 58,000 people,
it becomes nearly impossible to find someone who hasn’t heard about this ‘crazy right-wing

b2

election denier, extremist....”” Id. If the 58,000 people in Carson City are not a large
enough population from which an impartial jury could be seated, then certainly Lyon
County, a rural Northern Nevada county with a similar population, would present the
same issue. Given the similar population size between the current venue and Beadles’s
requested venue, this factor does not favor a change of venue.®

As to the nature and gravity of this case, the third factor also weighs in favor or
denying the Motion to Change Venue. The claims are unviable and a Motion to Dismiss is
pending. Moreover, Beadles’s allegations in his complaint echo strongly of the nationwide
misinformed assertions of election fraud ongoing since the 2020 election cycle. See Mot. to
Change Venue, Ex. 155, p. 3 (“Local officials in 44 counties in 15 states have faced efforts to
change rules on voting since the 2020 election, according to Reuters news service. All of
them were led by Trump loyalists or Republican Party activists driven by false voter-fraud
theories, Reuters reported.”). The ongoing political environment, not Beadles’s complaint,
bring the issues alleged to the forefront of the consciousness of communities across the
nation. This is no less true for Lyon County than it is for Carson City.

Moreover, “Carson City serves as the epicenter of political affairs.” Mot. at p. 2. The
First Judicial District Court has been specifically designated to hear elections matters. See
NRS 293.127565(4); NRS 293.12795(3); NRS 293.174; NRS 293.127565; NRS
293.200(9)(a); NRS 293.252(7)(b). It was also designated as an alternative venue to hear

actions against the State of Nevada and its departments. NRS 41.031(2). The First Judicial

6 If Beadles intention was to ensure a sufficient population from which to secure an impartial jury, a
transfer to Clark County, with its population of over 2 million people, would be more appropriate than Lyon
County.
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District Court in Carson City has ample experience with elections and government
defendant cases. The third factor does not favor changing venue. If anything, it weighs
toward maintaining venue in Carson City.

The fourth factor considers the status of the plaintiff and defendants in the
community. Commissioner Hill is an elected member of the Washoe County Board of
County Commission. Manager Brown and Ms. Rodriguez are appointed public employees
in Washoe County. The Defendants are well known in Washoe County local politics, but
Beadles has presented no evidence that the citizens of Carson City have any preconceived
notions of these Washoe County employees. Beadles is “a member of the Washoe County
Republican Central Committee and a major donor to various conservative candidates and
causes.” Mot. to Change Venue, Exhibit 154, p. 3. Beadles had to reach back to election-
season 2022 to find evidence of media coverage relating to him outside the context of his
activities within Washoe County. Id at Ex. 156. Although Beadles represents that he “has
become, or is close to becoming, a household name in much of Carson City,” that is an
assertion that would need to be investigated in voir-dire, not an allegation that should
support a pre-voir dire Motion to Change Venue. Id. at 8. Further, even assuming
hypothetically Beadles was as well known in Carson City as he believes himself to be, that
alone doesn’t demonstrate prejudice or impartiality in light of his claims that “there are
hundreds of thousands of people behind me.” Id. at p. 25. Although recognizable in local
politics in Washoe County, there is nothing about the status of either Beadles or
Defendants that makes them particularly well known in Carson City, which is the current
venue of this case. The status of the parties in Carson City does not support a finding that
a fair trial cannot occur in Carson City. This factor does not support a change of venue.

Last, factor five contemplates the existence of political overtones in the case. This
lawsuit alleging election fraud in Washoe County is undeniably political in nature.

However, the lawsuit alleges corruption specific to Washoe County, and the transfer to




O o0 N O ook W N

N N N N N N N M e e e e e e e
(o) NN B S O S = TN o R - R N BN e ) W & B N S O =)

Carson City mitigated any potential impartiality. The overarching political nature of the
lawsuit realleges the same election fraud theories that have been presented in communities
across the nation over the last three years, and that broad political overtone will not be
mitigated by moving this case to a different venue.

Beadles submitted an inflammatory complaint alleging election fraud in Washoe
County and seeking to remove an elected official and two appointed public employees from
their offices. Although there were some articles and stories relating to this lawsuit in
multiple media sources, primarily in mid-August 2023, there is simply no basis to argue
that the media coverage reaching Carson City relating to this lawsuit has been either
pervasive or sensational enough to deprive Beadles of the possibility of a fair trial.
Evaluating the Tarkanian factors, none of the five factors support another change of venue.

B. THE MOTION IS FURTHER EVIDENCE OF FORUM SHOPPING.

Forum shopping is the “practice of choosing the most favorable jurisdiction or court
in which a claim might be heard.” Black’s Law Dictionary 681 (8th ed. 2004). “Forum
shopping” is disfavored in Nevada State Courts. See, e.g., Adams v. Adams, 107 Nev. 790,
795, 820 P.2d 752 (1991); Lyon Cnty., 104 Nev. at 768, 766 P.2d at 904. The practice of
“forum shopping” is “inimical to sound judicial administration.” Pub. Serv. Comm’n of Nev.
v. SW. Gas Corp., 103 Nev. 307, 308, 738 P.2d 891, 891 (1987). Among the public interests
supported by the requirement that a lawsuit against a county be filed in that county is the
avoidance of forum shopping. Lyon Cnty., 104 Nev. at 768, 766 P.2d at 904.

Nonetheless, even after this case was transferred out of Washoe County to ensure
Beadle’s receives a fair trial, Beadles now presents yet another Motion to Change Venue,
which is a blatant effort to have this case determined by a decision maker that he
strategically deems most favorable to his cause. After previously arguing that Washoe
County was a biased venue, Beadles now requests in the alternative to transfer venue back

to Washoe County “for the sake of the appearance of justice.” Mot. at p. 19 Ins. 8-11.
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The Court should not entertain another change of venue, which would only cater to
Beadles’s sense of entitlement to forum and judge shopping. Forum shopping is
sanctionable under Rule 11. C v. Rady Children’s Hosp., 17-cv-0846-AJB-JLB, 2017 WL
6327138, at *5 (S.D. Cal. Dec. 8, 2017).

III. CONCLUSION

It is plainly apparent that Beadles did not file his Motion for Change of Venue in the
pursuit of justice but rather as another strategic attempt to have his meritless allegations
heard in the forum he believes will be most favorable to himself. As the plaintiff, Beadles
chose the initial venue in Washoe County. In light of pre-trial media coverage and the
status of the parties in Washoe County, to ensure an impartial trial the case was transferred
to Carson City. Beadles cannot demonstrate that Carson City, where Defendants are
neither elected nor appointed officials, is so prejudiced against him that he cannot secure a
fair trial. As such, the Motion for Change of Venue should be denied.

A proposed order is attached hereto as “Exhibit 4.”

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain
the social security number of any person.
Dated this 4th day of October, 2023.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney

-

By r /\ ~ '
LINDSAY'L. L\DDETL
Deputy District Attorney
One South Sierra Street
Reno, NV 89501
lliddell@da.washoecounty.gov
(775) 337-5700

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the Office of the District
Attorney of Washoe County, over the age of 21 years and not a party to nor interested in
the within action. I certify that on this date, Defendants’ Opposition To Plaintiff’s Second
Motion To Change Venue was filed with the First Judicial District Court, Carson City. I
certify that on this date, based on the parties’ agreement pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(E),
Plaintiff Robert Beadles was served with a copy of Defendants’ Opposition To Plaintiff’s
Second Motion To Change Venue at the following electronic mail address:

Robert Beadles
beadlesmail@gmail.com

Dated this 4th day October, 2023.
O. He

S. Haldeman

11-
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Exhibit 1

Exhibit 2
Exhibit 3
Exhibit 4

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Screenshot of https://static.rgj.com/about-us/

(last visited October 2, 2023) .....ccceeiiiiiiiiiieeee e 1 page
Email from Haldeman to Beadles 8/8/2023 ...........cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiienn. 1 page
Declaration of Suzanne Haldeman .................ccccovveiieeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieee, 1 page
Proposed Order .......ooovviiiiiieiee e 7 pages
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About Us

About the RGJ...

The RGJ is Northern Nevada's leading source for local news and information. The RGJ's extensive family of print
and digital media provides engaging, relevant and timely news and information for the communities they serve.

The Reno Gazette-Journal is a member of the Gannett family of print, broadcast and digital media, which
includes USA Today.

RGJ.com provides up to the minute breaking news updates. In addition to local news, RGJ.com is the area’s
leading website for information on prep sports, entertainment, real estate, employment and vehicles for sale.

A Brief History

The history of the Reno Gazette-Journal begins more than 125 years ago with the founding of the Nevada State
Journal in 1870. Just six years later, the Reno Evening Gazette began publication.

In 1939, Spiedel Newspapers, Inc., a small company that owned newspapers located primarily in the West,
acquired the two newspapers.

Then, in 1977, Speidel Newspapers merged with Gannett Company, Inc., providing more resources for
development and improvement of the local papers, including construction of a dramatic new office building with
state-of-the-art printing facilities in 1981, on its current site at 955 Kuenzli Street, near downtown Reno.

On October 7, 1983 the two newspapers merged into the Reno Gazette-Journal, a daily morning edition. In 1999
the company purchased Eastern Sierra Publishing, a commercial print operation in Carson City; and in 2000
purchased the Mason Valley News, Fernley Leader and Dayton Courier, weekly newspapers that serve
Yerington, Fernley and Dayton.

In the Fall of 2002, RENO Magazine mads its debut. This glossy lifestyle magzine captures the best of the new
Reno lifestyle.

The Reno Gazette-Journal has been consistently recognized for its journalistic excellence and its commitment to
community service. The paper has won numerous national and regional awards honoring editorial and
advertising excellence including the Pulitzer Prize for Editorial Writing, the highest recognition for excellence
awarded in American journalism.

The Gazette-Journal has also been honored many times by Gannett, including selection as the Most Improved
Mawenanar in 1061 and Mawsnanar nf tha Vaar in 1028 10287 1667 and 100R

o
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From:
To:

Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Attachments:

Haldeman, Suzanne

robertbeadles@protonmail.com; beadlesmail@gmail.com
Liddell, Lindsay L; Hickman, Elizabeth

Motion for Sanctions

Tuesday, August 8, 2023 1:42:30 PM

MOTION FOR SANCTIONS-08.08.23.pdf

image001.png

image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

Hello,

Please see attached. Thanks and have a great day.

Suzanne Haldeman
Legal Secretary
District Attorney's Office

shaldeman@da.washoecounty.gov | O: 775.337.5702
One South Sierra Street, Reno, NV 89501

o0& e
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CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
Washoe County District Attorney

LINDSAY L. LIDDELL
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada State Bar Number 14079
ELIZABETH HICKMAN
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada State Bar Number 11598
One South Sierra Street

Reno, NV 89501
lliddell@da.washoecounty.gov
ehickman(@da.washoecounty.gov
(775) 337-5700

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA

* % %

ROBERT BEADLES, an individual,
Plaintiff, Case No. 3:23-cv-00382-ART-CSD
Vs. MOTION FOR SANCTIONS

JAMIE RODRIGUEZ, in her official
capacity as Registrar of Voters and in her
personal capacity; the WASHOE COUNTY
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS, a government /
agency; ERIC BROWN in his official
capacity as WASHOE COUNTY
MANAGER and in his personal capacity,
ALEXIS HILL in her official capacity as
CHAIRWOMAN OF WASHOE
COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS and in her personal
capacity; WASHOE COUNTY, Nevada, a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada,
and DOES I-X; and ROE
CORPORATIONS I-X.

Defendants.

Defendants, by and through their counsel, hereby move for sanctions pursuant to

FRCP 11 in the form of dismissal of the Complaint, a monetary sanction and attorneys’
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fees and costs. This Motion is based on the following Memorandum of Points and
Authorities, FRCP 11, the Court’s inherent power to sanction, the exhibits attached hereto,
and all pleadings on file in this Court.
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I. Introduction.

Plaintiff Robert Beadles (“Beadles”) frivolously filed the Complaint with claims not
warranted by existing law, not supported by facts, and to harass Defendants Washoe
County Commissioner Alexis Hill (“Commissioner Hill”), Washoe County Manager Eric
Brown (“Manager Brown”), and Washoe County Registrar of Voters Jamie Rodriguez
(“Ms. Rodriguez”). Pursuant to FRCP 11(c)(2), a copy of this Motion was provided to
Beadles on August 8, 2023, at least twenty-one days before filing the instant Motion. See
Ex. 1, Declaration of Suzi Haldeman; Ex. 2, Rule 11 Letter. Beadles was afforded a reasonable
opportunity to take remedial actions and failed to do so within the time provided. See id.

Beadles’” Complaint contains various baseless and delusory allegations disjointed
from any viable legal claim. He seeks apocryphal relief, attempting to use this Court to
harass Defendants and insurrect Washoe County’s elections procedures. It is not “a proper
function of a federal court to serve as a forum for ‘protests,’ to the detriment of parties with
serious disputes waiting to be heard.” Saltany v. Reagan, 886 F.2d 438, 440 (D.C. Cir.
1989); see also Knipe v. Skinner, 10 F.3d 72, 77 (2d Cir. 1994)(affirming Rule 11 sanctions,
where, as the district court found, filing of the action was “[a]nother creative avenue to beat
a dead horse” and the “pursuit[t of] a personal agenda against [a government entity]”
without a good faith basis).

Beadles’ tactics are abusive and consequently sanctionable. Whether to impose
sanctions and the nature of those sanctions is within the Court’s discretion. Cooter & Gell v.
Hartmarx Corp., 496 U.S. 384, 405 (1990). As set forth below, the Court should sanction

Beadles, including a monetary sanction paid to the court, an award of Defendants’
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attorneys fees and costs, and dismissal of this action.
II. BACKGROUND

Beadles moved to Nevada in 2020 and has since engaged in a scheme to disrupt local
and state government operations. In October 2021, Beadles commented at the Washoe
County Board of Trustees meeting that “God has blessed me, and I have a shit-ton of
money, and I'm going to do everything I fucking can ... to remove you.”' Beadles runs a
blog where he regularly opines on government operations and expresses his disdain for
Commissioner Hill, Manager Brown, and Ms. Rodriguez. See Ex. 3, Beadles’ Post entitled “I
Just Sued Them All For You!,” Ex. 4, Beadles’ Post entitled “We SUED for YOU!,” and Ex. 5,
Beadles’ Post entitled “Comrade Hill-Insky.”

Furthering his efforts to harass Ms. Rodriguez, Commissioner Hill, and Manager
Brown, Beadles filed the instant Complaint. The Complaint contains conclusory false
statements, including that he submitted “Petitions” to Defendants and they had a duty to
respond to those “Petitions;” that Defendants oversaw the 2020 election, despite
Commissioner Hill and Ms. Rodriguez not assuming their current roles until 2021 and
2022, respectively; that Defendants “willfully committed acts of malpractice,
maladministration, and/or nonfeasance, and perjury...;” that the Washoe County
Registrar of Voters is unprepared to run the 2024 presidential election; that the County’s
elections are “tainted” with inaccurate voter rolls, there are “illegal functions within the
electronic system that alter intended votes, that votes are counted without adequate
verification and with disregard to signature verification, and that the elections are generally
violated federal and state law, and that “his vote did not count as he cast it and thus has
been robbed of his right to suffrage.” See Compl.

Beadles’ claims are not based in law. He names Defendants Ms. Rodriguez,

Commissioner Hill, and Manager Brown in both their official and personal capacities.

! https://youtu.be/FleduveSjDc?t=21534






10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

There is no legal basis to pursue constitutional claims in those Defendants’ official
capacities. He names the Registrar of Voters, an unsuable county department. He names
Washoe County, without identifying any constitutional basis to pursue his claim. His
allegations fall grossly short of an equal protection claim, failing to set forth the bare bones
of an alleged equal protection violation. He improperly attempts to seek election-related
injunctive relief under a statute that allows only for a public official’s removal. He pursues
a flawed procedural due process claim involving other individuals’ elections complaints to
the Secretary of State. Beadles’ claims are disordered and without basis in law or fact.
Beadles seeks to improperly use this Court to harass, rather than to adjudicate
legitimate legal claims. He seeks unavailable relief, including invalidating provisions of the
NRS, requiring Defendants use paper ballots, “[e]njoin the Defendants and make the
digitized vote tally database (Microsoft SQL) open for public inspection,” require
Defendants disclose applicant name and credentials, prohibit Defendants from using QR
codes, “halt” Defendants’ expenditure of “unapproved and unsafe equipment and

2

software.” Compl. at p. 20. Beadles seems to acknowledge his Complaint violates Rule 11,
stating in his complaint:
Plaintiff comes before the court pro se because many BAR-certified
attorneys are being targeted, dis-barred, sanctioned, etc. for simply
bringing an elections-related lawsuit forward. Plaintiff hereby
represents himself pro se to save his lawyers from attacks on their
livelihoods.
Compl. at §152.

It is readily apparent that Beadles lacks a reasonable basis in fact or law to pursue his
claims and requested relief. Beadles is free to use his website to express himself. The Court,
however, is not an appropriate venue for such behavior. Sanctions are appropriate.

/17

/17

2 Additionally, to the extent Beadles’ “legal team” is involved in ghost writing his pleadings, to do so without
disclosing the attorney’s identity may be sanctionable. See Nev. State Bar Ass’n, Formal Ethics Op. 34 (2009).
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III.Beadles Violated Rule 11 and Sanctions are Warranted.
a. Rule 11 Prohibits Baseless Filings and Filings for Improper Purposes.
When filing a Complaint, the party certifies that to the best of their knowledge,
information, and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable under the circumstances:

(1) 1t is not being presented for any improper purpose, such
as to harass, cause unnecessary delay, or needlessly
increase the cost of litigation,;

(2) the claims, defenses, and other legal contentions are
warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument
for extending, modifying, or reversing existing law or for
establishing new law;

(3) the factual contentions have evidentiary support or, if
specifically so identified, will likely have evidentiary
support after a reasonable opportunity for further
investigation or discovery; and

(4) the denials of factual contentions are warranted on the
evidence or, if specifically so identified, are reasonably
based on a belief or lack of information.

FRCP 11(b)(emphases added).

“Rule 11 is intended to deter baseless filings in district court and imposes a duty of
reasonable inquiry so that anything filed with the district court is well grounded in fact,
legally tenable, and not interposed for any improper purpose.” Walker v. City of N. Las
Vegas, 394 F. Supp. 3d 1251, 1260 (D. Nev. 2019), appeal dismissed, 19-16305, 2020 WL
3620207 (9th Cir. Jan. 21, 2020) (quotations omitted). Rule 11 should be vigorously
applied to “curb widely acknowledged abuse from the filing of frivolous pleadings.” In Re
Grantham Bros., 922 F.2d 1438, 1441 (9th Cir. 1991)(quotations omitted).

A frivolous action is one that is “both baseless and made without a reasonable and
competent inquiry.” Id., citing Townsend v. Holman Consulting Corp., 929 F.2d 1358, 1362
(9th Cir. 1990). The determination of frivolity is two-pronged: (1) the court must
determine whether the pleading is “well grounded in fact and is warranted by existing law

/17
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or a good faith argument for the extension, modification or reversal of existing law,” and
(2) whether the party made a reasonable and competent inquiry. /d.

Rule 11 also addresses “the problem of misusing judicial procedures as a weapon for
personal or economic harassment.” Aetna Life Ins. Co. v. Alla Medical Services, Inc., 855 F.2d
1470, 1475 (9th Cir. 1988)(quoting Zaldiver v. City of Los Angeles, 780 F.2d 823, 830 (9th Cir.
1986). A finding of “improper purpose” is determined upon a review of facts and law; an
“improper purpose” can be deduced where there is no legal or factual basis for a claim.
Paciulan v. George, 38 F.Supp.2d 1128 (N.D. Cal. 1999).

Sanctions under Rule 11 are governed by a standard of objective reasonableness.
See, e.g., Coon. V. CSO Borjorquez, 967 F.2d 1418, 1420 (9th Cir. 1992). A party may not
avoid Rule 11 sanctions “by operating under the guise of pure heart and empty head.”
Zuniga v. United Can Co., 812 F.2d 443, 452 (9th Cir. 1987).

b. The Court has Inherent Power to Sanction.

In addition to the power set forth in Rule 11, Federal Courts have inherent power to
impose sanctions “to regulate their docket, promote judicial efficiency, and deter frivolous
filings.” Business Guides, Inc. v. Chromatic Comm. Enters., Inc., 121 F.R.D. 402, 405 (N.D.
Cal. 1988)(quoting Roadway Express Inc. v. Piper, 447 U.S. 752, 764 (1980)). “[A] court may
assess attorney’s fees when a party has ‘acted in bad faith, vexatiously, wantonly, or for
oppressive reasons.”” Chambers v. Nasco, Inc., 501 U.S. 32, 45-46 (1991)(citations omitted).

c. Beadles Filed the Complaint for Improper Purposes.

Beadles filed the instant Complaint to vex and harass Defendants in pursuit of his
personal animus against Commissioner Hill, Manager Brown, and Ms. Rodriguez. Beadles
regularly communicates his hostility regarding Defendants— describing Commissioner Hill
as a communist and referring to her as “Comrad Hill-insky,” referring to Manager Brown
as “Eric Brownstain,” and referring to Ms. Rodriguez as “the utterly incompetent, who'’s

not competent enough to clean toilets let alone our voter rolls.” Exs. 3-5.
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In a blog post describing the instant Complaint, Beadles declared he was “putting it
all on the line to sue the County Manager, ROV and Commissioner Chair — in both their
personal and official capacities and the whole damn county itself.” Ex. 3. Beadles’ tone
shows he needlessly extended his claims to include various capacities and “the whole damn
county.” See id. He states, “I'm calling them out on every front.” Id.

Beadles’ choice to name Commissioner Hill as a defendant rather than all
commissioners suggests Beadles seeks to harass Commissioner Hill with this action.
Beadles is well aware that Commissioner Hill cannot bind Washoe County in action on her
own—a majority vote of the Board of County Commissioners is required. Moreover, to the
extent Commissioner Hill owed any duty to Beadles as he alleges, all County
Commissioners would owe him that duty and would have fallen short according to his
unviable legal theory. Yet, Beadles names only Commissioner Hill.

Beadles further demonstrates the vexatious nature of this case by waiting nearly eight
months to seek redress for petitions Beadles’ alleges he filed in fall 2022. A genuine legal
claim arising from those petitions, would have been brought shortly after they were
allegedly “ignored.” Further showing Beadles’ sanctionable conduct in filing the
Complaint, he acknowledges attorneys have been sanctioned for filing similar elections-
related claims. Compl. at §15.

In addition, as set forth below, Beadles’ improper purpose can be deduced where
there is no legal or factual basis for a claim. Paciulan v. George, 38 F.Supp.2d 1128 (N.D.
Cal. 1999). His pursuit of unviable claims and false allegation shows this case is not about
redressing legitimate legal disputes. It is another attempt to harass, vex, and consume
Defendants’ resources.

Beadles violated Rule 11 by filing the Complaint for an improper purpose, and
sanctions are warranted on that basis alone.

/17
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d. The Complaint Contains False Statements.

Though unrelated to his claims, Beadles includes allegations that Defendants
oversaw elections in 2020. Copml. at 9932, 41. As an initial matter, Beadles is well aware
that Commissioner Hill was not a County Commissioner until 2021. Beadles is also aware
that Ms. Rodriguez did not take on the Registrar for Voters role until 2022. Beadles’
reckless disregard for facts is evident with these allegations.

Moreover, Beadles falsely alleges that Commissioner Hill and Manager Brown
“handle voter registrations and conduct elections on behalf of the people of Washoe
County.” Compl. at §17. Beadles acknowledges that Ms. Rodriguez is the appointed
Registrar of Voters—the County Manager and the Chairperson for the Board of
Commissioners are not directly involved. See Compl. at 18. He further acknowledges that
the Registrar of Voters has all the powers and duties that would otherwise be assigned to a
county clerk regarding elections. Compl. at q17; WCC 5.451(4). Manager Brown and
Commissioner Hill have no such duties nor power, yet Beadles maintains each handles and
oversees elections. Compl. at 917, 32, 41.

Beadles also makes various false statements regarding Washoe County elections,

bR T4

including: “unclean and grossly inaccurate voting rolls,” “unapproved and unsecure voting

M«

systems,” “rush toward pioneering new technology that could impact county, state, and

M«

national security,” “failure to train staff and election officials,” “unequal treatment of

bR Y3

signatures at the polls,” “illegal function within the election system,” and “gross violations
of the Nevada Revised Statutes and Administrative Codes regarding election procedures
and the list goes on.” Compl. at 436.

Some of the aforementioned statements are so vague that a pointed response is
difficult, but the statements are nonetheless inaccurate rantings of a conspiracy theorist

disconnected from any legitimate claim. The more specific statements—e.g. unequal

treatment of signatures, failure to train staff, unsecure voting systems, inaccurate voting
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rolls—are false. Ex. 6, Declaration of Jamie Rodriguez. Beadles knows or should know, based
on the information Washoe County has thus far directly or indirectly provided to him, that
his delusions are not accurate, yet he presents them in a court of law.

Beadles also falsely asserts he filed “Petitions” with the County. Compl. at 434. A
closer look at the “Petitions” reveals that only one of the “Petitions” was actually sent to
Washoe County—the others went to the entity actually dedicated to reviewing those
petitions, the Secretary of State. See Compl. at ECF 1-1 p. 29, 76, 88. Beadles then falsely
states that “defendants have a duty and obligation to respond to Petition of elections...”
Compl. at 946. The law imposes no such duty to “respond,” and no such duty on
Defendants specifically. See NRS 293.2546(11), NAC 293.025(requiring elections
complaints be submitted to the Secretary of State).

Beadles proffers allegations not based in reality inaccuracies of which he knows or
should have known. It is entirely inappropriate to place these allegations in a pleading, and
doing so is sanctionable under Rule 11.

e. The Complaint Contains Claims not Based in Law.
i. Beadles Seeks Unattainable Relief

Beadles’ improper purpose is displayed in his requested relief, wherein he seeks
relief that could not be granted even if his claims were viable. The Complaint contains
various allegations regarding voter rolls and general elections procedures. Beadles then
pursues claims based on failure to respond to his elections petitions, equal protection, due
process, and a claim to remove Defendants from their positions. There is a vast disparity
between the factual assertions made, the harm claimed, and the ultimate relief requested.

In his “Demand for Relief,” Beadles asks the Court to “strike down NRS
293.269935(2) and 293.3606(4) to allow public inspection of ballots.” Compl. at p. 20. He
asks that the Court prohibit Defendants from “using any voting and tabulation machines

for elections,” which the law allows them to do. Id. He asks that the Court require
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Defendants to use paper ballots, “[e]njoin the Defendants and make the digitized vote tally
database (Microsoft SQL) open for public inspection,” require Defendants disclose
applicant name and credentials, prohibit Defendants from using QR codes, “halt”
Defendants’ expenditure of “unapproved and unsafe equipment and software.” Id. He also
requests that the Court require Defendants “take into account and redress all elections
issues that Plaintiff puts on the table, no shying away.” Id. at p. 19.

Beadles improperly attempts to use this Court as a vehicle to direct Washoe
County’s elections policies. The majority of the relief he seeks is not relief available for the
claims he alleges. He makes no allegation nor claim to support the relief requested above.
From this alone, the Court may infer his improper purpose in filing the Complaint. See
Paciulan, 38 F.Supp.2d 1128.

ii. Claims Against the Registrar of Voters are Wholly Unviable.

A department of a county is not a suable entity because it is not political subdivision
of the State of Nevada. Wayment v. Holmes, 112 Nev. 232, 237-38, 912 P.2d 816, 819; see
also Schneider v. Elko County Sheriff’s Dep’t, 17 F. Supp. 2d 1162, 1165 (D. New.
1998)(dismissing suit against a county sheriff’s department for lack of capacity to be sued).
A county department is “immune from suit” because it is not a suable entity. Wayment, 112
Nev. at 239, 912 P.2d at 820.

Beadles’ claims against the Registrar of Voters are not warranted by law. The
Registrar of Voters is a department of Washoe County, and not a suable entity. Beadles
violated Rule 11 by filing claims against the Registrar of Voters.

iii. Beadles Relies on Inapplicable Law to Pursue Criminal Liability.

Beadles’ Fourth Cause of Action, citing NRS 283.440 and NRS 266.430, demands
Ms. Rodriguez’s removal from her appointed position as Registrar of Voters, Manager
Brown’s removal from his appointed position as Washoe County Manager, and

Commissioner Hill’s removal from her elected position as Chair of the Washoe County

-10-
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Board of County Commissioners.

NRS 266.430 is a criminal statute that provides for the removal of the mayor or any
municipal officer of an incorporated city or town who is adjudged guilty of nonfeasance,
misfeasance or malfeasance by any court of competent jurisdiction. Setting aside that a
member of the public cannot pursue criminal liability, Beadles relies on clearly inapplicable
law. Defendants are employed by Washoe County, not an incorporated city or town, and
this is a civil action. As such, NRS 266.430 is inapplicable as a matter of law.

Relief sought under NRS 266.430 is not warranted by law, and further evidences
Beadles’ improper purpose in bringing the present action.

iv. Beadles’ Claims Regarding Elections Petitions are Baseless.

Beadles alleges that by not acknowledging and responding to the three documents
he and others submitted to Defendants complaining about election processes and
contesting the 2022 election, Defendants “deprived Plaintiff to have his grievances heard as
enshrined in Nev. Const. Art. 1 § 10.” Complaint at 12. Article 1 § 10 of the Nevada
Constitution, titled “Right to assemble and to petition,” provides: “The people shall have
the right freely to assemble together to consult for the common good, to instruct their
representatives and to petition the Legislature for redress of Grievances.” Beadles’s
allegations, specifically that the Washoe County Manager, Chair of the Washoe County
Board of County Commissioners, and the Washoe County Registrar of Voters did not
respond to his complaints, does not give rise to a claim under Article 1 § 10 of the Nevada
Constitution. Construing the Complaint broadly, there are no facts alleged that, if true,
demonstrate that Defendants impeded Beadles’s right to assemble, to instruct his
representatives, or to petition the Legislature. The Complaint fails to state a claim for a
violation of Article 1 § 10 of the Nevada Constitution.

Next, Beadles alleges Defendants violated his rights under Article 2 § 1A(11) of the

Nevada Constitution because he has a “constitutional right to pose grievances and have
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them resolved “fairly, accurately and efficiently,” but Defendants ignored his complaints.
Compl. at p. 12. Article 2 § 1A(11) provides that each registered voter in the State of
Nevada has the right “to have complaints about elections and election contests resolved
fairly, accurately and efficiently as provided by law.” This provision of the Nevada
Constitution is codified in NRS 293.2546(11), the Nevada Voters’ Bill of Rights.

The Nevada Secretary of State is the Chief Officer for Elections in the State. NRS
293.124. As Chief Officer for Elections, the Secretary of State is responsible for the
execution and enforcement of all provisions of NRS Title 24 and all other provisions of
State and Federal law relating to elections in this State. Id. Consistent with this
framework, NAC 293.025 provides, “A person who wishes to file a complaint concerning
an alleged violation of any provision of title 24 of NRS must: 1. Submit the complaint in
writing to the Secretary of State; and 2. Sign the complaint.” In addition to submitting
complaints to the Secretary of State concerning any alleged violation of NRS Title 24 (NRS
Chapters 293-306), any registered voter may contest the election of a candidate by filing a
Statement of Contest with the clerk of the district court. NRS 293.407.

Nothing in Nevada law required Defendants to respond to documents that, by law,
were required to be submitted to the Nevada Secretary of State or the district court. The
Complaint, fails to state a claim under Article 2 § 1A(11) of the Nevada Constitution or
NRS 293.2546(11). As such, these claims are not warranted by law and Beadles should be
sanctioned for pursuing the same.

v. Punitive Damages are Unavailable for State Law Claims.

Nevada law prohibits awards of punitive damages against government entities and
employees. NRS 41.035(1). “An award may not include any amount as exemplary or
punitive damages.” Id.

In the present case, Plaintiff alleges he is entitled to punitive damages in his state

law tort claims. As a matter of law, he is not. Beadles’ pursuit of punitive damages in state
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law claims is unwarranted by law.
vi. Vicarious Liability is Unavailable for 1983 Claims.

Beadles named Washoe County as a Defendant, arguing “Washoe County is
vicariously liable for the actions of its officers and officials when they are acting within the
scope of their employment.” Compl. at p. 3. Vicarious liability is not an applicable theory of
liability in a Section 1983 claim. Igbal, 556 U.S. at 663, 129 S.Ct. at 1940.

This claim is not warranted by law, and should subject Beadles to sanctions.

vii. Damages under an “Official Capacity’” Theory is Not Warranted byj
Law in the 1983 Claims.

Beadles improperly pursues Section 1983 damages against Ms. Rodriguez,
Commissioner Hill, and Manager Brown in both their official capacities and personal
capacities. Beadles identifies both capacities, seeking monetary damages for both, without
regard to the law.

To state a claim under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, a plaintiff must allege two elements:
(1) that a right secured by the Constitution or laws of the United States was violated, and
(2) that the alleged violation was committed by a person acting under the color of state law.
West v. Atkins, 487 U.S. 42, 48 (1988). State officials sued for damages in their official
capacities are not “persons” under Section 1983. Arizonans for Official English v. Arizona, 520
U.S. 43, 69 n.24 (1997).

Beadles’ pursuit of damages in Section 1983 claims against Defendants in their
“official capacities” is not warranted by law.

viii. The Equal Protection Claim is Baseless.

The Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment requires that persons
who are similarly situated be treated alike. City of Cleburne v. Cleburne Living Center, Inc., 473
U.S. 432, 439, 105 S.Ct. 3249, 3254(1985) (“The Equal Protection Clause of the

Fourteenth Amendment commands that no State shall ‘deny to any person within its
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jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws,” which is essentially a direction that all persons
similarly situated should be treated alike.”) (citations omitted); Hartmann v. California Dep't
of Corr. & Rehab., 707 F.3d 1114, 1123 (9th Cir. 2013) (“The Equal Protection Clause
requires the State to treat all similarly situated people equally.”); Furnace v. Sullivan, 705
F.3d 1021, 1030 (9th Cir. 2013); Shakur v. Schriro, 514 F.3d 878, 891 (9th Cir. 2008). To
state a claim, plaintiffs must allege facts showing that Defendants intentionally
discriminated against them based on their membership in a protected class, or that similarly
situated individuals were intentionally treated differently without a rational relationship to
a legitimate state purpose. Engquist v. Oregon Dep’t. of Agr., 553 U.S. 591, 601-02 (2008),
Lazy Y Ranch Ltd. v. Behrens, 546 F.3d 580, 592 (9th Cir. 2008); Hartmann, 707 F.3d at 1123;
Furnace, 705 F.3d at 1030.

Beadles’ claim alleging that his rights under the Equal Protections Clause were
violated simply reiterates his allegation that Defendants “have twice ignored Plaintiff’s
valid grievances to which he is entitled to receive proper application and equal protection
under the law.” Compl. at p. 16. Beadles does not allege facts demonstrating that he is in a
protected class, he does not allege facts that similarly situated individuals were
intentionally treated differently, nor that he was discriminated against based on his
membership in a protected class. The allegations fall far short of stating a plausible claim
under the Equal Protections Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.

This claim is not warranted by law, and therefore sanctionable.

ix. The Due Process Claim is Baseless

The Fourteenth Amendment Due Process Clause prohibits the State from depriving
any person of life, liberty, or property without due process of law and ensures individuals
are protected “against the arbitrary action of government.” Wolff v. McDonnell, 418 U.S|
539, 558, 94 S.Ct. 2963, 2975 (1974). When analyzing a procedural due process claim, the|

initial inquiry is “whether there exists a liberty or property interest which has been interfered
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with by the State, ...[and if so] whether the procedures attendant upon that deprivation werg
constitutionally sufficient.” Kentucky Dep’t of Corrections v. Thompson, 490 U.S. 454, 460, 109
S.Ct. 1904, 1908 (1989). Individuals are not constitutionally entitled to their preferred,
voting methods. See, e.g., Weber v. Shelley, 347 F.3d 1101, 1106-07 (9th Cir. 2003).

Here, Beadles does not set forth any allegation that amounts to a facially viable due
process claim. Even if Beadles had a liberty interest created by state law, the Defendants in
this case are not the proper parties against whom Beadles could pursue a claim. State law
requires Beadles to submit complaints about elections processes to the Secretary of State.
NRS 293.2546(11); NAC 293.025. State law requires Beadles to submit a Statement of
Contest to the district court clerk. NRS 293.413.

Defendants have not deprived Beadles of any process to which he is entitled, much
less a deprivation of the magnitude that invokes the protections of the Constitution of the
United States. Rather, quite the opposite, the Complaint makes assertions establishing that
Beadles simply declined to pursue procedures already in place address his grievances.
Beadles’ due process claim in this case is not warranted by law, and was filed in violation
of Rule 11.

f. Sanctions are Appropriate, Including Dismissal, a Monetary Sanction,
and Attorneys’ Fees.

Under Rule 11, the court may sanction an unrepresented litigant. Warran v. Guelker,
29 F.3d 1386, 1390 (9th Cir. 1994). A sanction “must be limited to what suffices to deter
repetition of this conduct or comparable conduct by others similarly situated.” FRCP
11(c)(4). “The sanction may include nonmonetary directives; an order to pay a penalty into
court; or if imposed on motion and warranted for effective deterrence, an order directing
payment to the movant of part or all of the reasonable attorney’s fees and other expenses
directly resulting from the violation.” Id.

/17
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The severity of the sanctions should take into account whether a filing is only
frivolous or both frivolous and made for an improper purpose. Townsend v. Holman
Consulting Corp., 929 F.2d 1358, 1362 (1990). Where, as here, a complaint has no legal
basis, an improper purpose may be inferred. Agbabiaka v. HSBC Bank USA Nat. Ass'n, Case
No. 09-05583 JSW, 2010 WL 1609974, at *8) (N.D. Cal. Apr. 20, 2010)(quoting Paciulan v.
George, 38 F.Supp.2d 1128, 1144 (N.D. Cal. 1999). The Ninth Circuit noted that “evidence
bearing on frivolousness or non-frivolousness will often be highly probative of purpose.”
Townsend, 929 F.2d at 1362.

Beadles violated Rule 11 in signing a pleading containing a claim not warranted by
existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for extending, modifying, or reversing existing
law or for establishing new law, and for improper purposes. Sanctions are appropriate,
including a monetary sanction paid to the court, an award of Defendants’ attorneys fees
and costs, and dismissal of this action.

/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
/17
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IV. Conclusion

This case is an abuse of the judicial process. The well-established rules of this Court
prohibit litigants from filing for improper purposes, proffering claims not backed by law,
and proffering factual allegations not backed by evidence. Beadles’ Complaint is
disconnected from the law and from reality. The Complaint and its frivolous and
unfounded claims should be dismissed, Beadles should be sanctioned, and Defendants
should likewise be awarded attorneys’ fees related to pursuing the instant Motion. The
overt and egregious Rule 11 violations in this case warrant such sanctions.

Dated this 8th day of August, 2023.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS

District Attorney

By_/s/ Lindsay L. Liddell
LINDSAY L. LIDDELL
Deputy District Attorney
One South Sierra Street
Reno, NV 89501
lliddell@da.washoecounty.gov
(775) 337-5700

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANTS
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DECLARATION OF SUZANNE HALDEMAN
STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF WASHOE
I, Suzanne Haldeman do hereby declare, under penalty of perjury, the following;
1. Tam a Legal Secretary for the Washoe County District Attorney’s Office.
On August 8, 2023, I deposited the Motion for Sanctions and the Rule 11 letter attached to
the Motion for Sanctions as Exhibit 2 in the U.S. mail, and sent the same to the following

email addresses: robertbeadles@protonmail.com; beadlesmail@gmail.com.
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One South Sierra Street
Reno, Nevada 89501

775.328.3200
washoecounty.us/da

Christopher J. Hicks
District Attorney

August 8, 2023

Via U.S. Mail:

Robert Beadles

10580 N. McCarran Blvd. #115, Apt. 386
Reno, NV 89503

Via Email:
robertbeadles@protonmail.com
beadlesmail@gmail.com

Re:  Robert Beadles v. Jamie Rodriguez, et al.; Second Judicial District Court case number
CV23-01283; U.S. District of Nevada case number 3:23-cv-00382-ART-CSD

Dear Mr. Beadles,

Enclosed is a proposed motion for sanctions that will be filed with the Court after 21 days,
as provided by FRCP 11(c), unless the Complaint in the above-referenced action in its
entirety against all defendants is withdrawn.

The Complaint was filed for improper purposes, filed with claims not warranted by law,
and containing statements not well grounded in fact. Your Rule 11 violations are set forth
in detail in the enclosed Motion. You are pursuing this action for no purpose other than
to harass and engage government entities and officials in costly frivolous litigation. Even
when not represented by an attorney, a pro se party may be subject to Rule 11 sanctions.

I offer you this opportunity to withdraw your frivolous pleading in its entirety before the
attached Motion for Sanctions is filed.

Sincerely,

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
Washoe County District Attorney

X P
By: / /\ P
LINDSAYL. LIDDELL
Deputy District Aftorney

LLL

Justice First, People Always
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Latest Posts in For The Kids and Parents! The Corruption Chronicles Part 8: Al Confirms The

© “UNLIGHT

Must Read & Share: Treason

Read Here

| Just Sued Them All For You!

by operationsunlight | Jul 26,2023 | Beadles Bombs

Share This Content

N READ MORE BELOW!






Listen, folks, I’'m taking a stand, putting it all on the line to sue the County Manager, ROV,
and Commissioner Chair - in both their personal and official capacities and the whole
damn county itself. I'm stepping into the ring on my own. Why? Look around. Lawyers
everywhere are being sanctioned and or disbarred for trying election cases. Look at John
Eastman in California he’s getting sidelined and blackballed for standing up in election
cases. | won’t let that happen to my legal team.

The majority of us - 60-80%, depending on what poll you look at - say our elections have
serious issues. With this lawsuit, | show that our constitutional rights have been trampled
over, our concerns unheard, and our lawful petitions thrown aside. But I’'m not standing by
idle. No, I'm calling them out on every front. Our voter rolls are a mess, uncertified election
equipment being used willy-nilly, our votes being counted in secret, a function within our
election system is flipping our votes, inadequate signature verification - which is the only
real safequard we have left to make sure our votes are counted legitimately - and damn

near every election law there is has been broken.

Just wait, the hard evidence is on its way. | can’t put it in the complaint, you don’t present a
case in a complaint, you present the evidence as the case goes forward. Know that we’re
dealing with hard facts here, not conspiracy theories. The outcome? That’s in the hands of
God. It’s going to be uphill for sure. To start, I’'m suing the very county we demand justice
from. | may have to take this all the way to SCOTUS, and | will if | have to. But this case, it’s
a game-changer, and we’ll see what God brings our way.

Rest assured, | wouldn’t stake my name, or risk my reputation if | didn’t have the proof.
What | demand from the court is simple: boot these people out of office and mend our
fractured, dysfunctional election system. This is a high-speed ride, folks, so hold on tight
and send your prayers our way. A case like this, to my knowledge, has never been
attempted. If we can expose the corruption and dysfunction here, we can expose it
everywhere. Say some prayers for us all, and let’s do this!

Look at the lawsuit here:





FILED
Etectronically
2023—07725‘04142 11 PM
licia L. Lorud
COMP
ROBERT BEADLES
10580 N. McCarran Blvd. #115, Apt. 386
Reno, NV 89503
Plaintiff; Pro Se

Clerk of the Court
Transaction # 9794290 : csulezic

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA N
'AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

MR ROBERT BEADLES, an individual,

Plaintiff, CASENO.:
vs. DEPT.NO.:

JAMIE RODRIGUEZ, in her official capacity

as Registrar of Voters and in her personal

capacity;  the  WASHOE ~ COUNTY

REGISTRAR OF VOTERS, a government COMPLAINT FOR EQUITABLE,
agency; ERIC BROWN in his offcial capacity | INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, PETITION FOR
o WASHOE COUNTY MANAGER and n'his| ~ REMOVAL OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL

personal capacity, ALEXIS HILL in her official FROM OFFICE,
capacity as CHAIRWOMAN OF WASHOE AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES
COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

and in her personal capacity; WASHOE (Jury Trial Demanded)

COUNTY. Nevada, a political subdivision of| ~ Automatically Exempt from Arbitration
the State of Nevada, and DOES 1-X; and ROE|  NAR S(a)(1)(G)—Declaratory Relicf
CORPORATIONS I-X.

Defendants.

Plaintiff ROBERT BEADLES (“Beadlcs”), in proper person, hereby files this Complaint
against JAMIE RODRIGUEZ (“Rodriguez”) in her official capacity as Registrar of Voters and in
her personal capacity; the WASHOE COUNTY REGISTRAR OF VOTERS, & government
agency; ERIC BROWN (“Brown”) in his official capacity as WASHOE COUNTY MANAGER
and in his personal capacity, ALEXIS HILL (“Hill") in her official capacity as CHAIRWOMAN

OF WASHOE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS and in her personal capacity;

Page 1 of 24

Download [840.66 KB]

Remembf_\r, | sued for you and your family, not just mine, If we can save our elections, we
can save it all, and that’s the truth, no matter how the corrupt press tries to spin this

Beadles

P.S.

This isn’t about changing past election results; this is about ensuring our votes going
forward count legitimately for all legal voters as we cast them, and the people who are
failing to do their jobs for whatever reason end up in the unemployment line





DISCLAIMER:
These thoughts, statements, and opinions are my own, not of any club, committee, organization,

etc.

Follow Us On:
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7: Cares Campus VS Our Place BUSTED! Voting Machine Hoax! Mail-in Ball:

()CD PERATION

Must Read & Share: Treason

We SUED For YOU!

by operationsunlight | Jun 30, 2023 | Beadles Bombs

Share This Content

WE SUED FOR YOU!
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This is the first of many lawsuits we’re filing.

When someone cannot logically debate with you, they often resort to silencing you, for
they fear the power of your words.

Here is the lawsuit:

Case 2:23-cv-01009 Document 2 Filed 06/29/23 Pa

COMP

1 |SIGAL CHATTAH, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 8264

2 |CHATTAH LAW GROUP
5875 S. Rainbow Blvd #203
3 |Las Vegas, Nevada 89118
Tel: (702) 360-6200

4 |Fax:(702) 643-6292

5 | Attorney for Plaintiff
Susan Vanness Et Al

THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA

9 |SUSAN VANNESS, an individual,
ALEXANDREA SLACK, an individual
10 |MARTIN WALDMAN, an individual,
ROBERT BEADLES  an individual

11 Case No:

e e e

12

Download [262.67 KB]
Introduction:

This is the first of many lawsuits we’re filing, and it’s a crucial one for you and your way of
life. We’re taking on SB406, a messed-up law that could land you in jail for four years just
for asking why an election worker isn’t doing their job. Talk about a complete lack of clarity

and an invitation for abuse!

The Problem with SB406:





This bill is so vague that it leaves everything up for interpretation. That means they can
twist the rules however they want and silence anyone they please. The media will
undoubtedly say our lawsuit is an attack on democracy, but that’s just a load of BS.

Protecting our Rights:

Let’s get one thing straight - we already have laws to protect people from harassment and
stalking. Instead of creating new ones, why not focus on enforcing the existing ones? We
can’t have Grandma ending up in maximum security just for annoying the quy at the
polling place who won’t give her a ballot because someone already voted for her.
Remember County Commissioner Jeanne Herman? Someone stole her identity and cast a
vote on her behalf. When she spoke up, the election worker gave her a hard time until a
witness stepped in and vouched for her. If this law had been in place, she could have ended
up with a class E felony! I'm not exaggerating here; this is a serious threat to our
freedom.

Our Broken Election System:

You won’t believe what’s been going on with our county manager, Eric Brown, aka Eric
Brownstain, and the utterly incompetent, who’s not competent enough to clean toilets let
alone our voter rolls, Jaime Rodriguez, our registrar of voters. They finally admitted that
our Washoe County election system is a total mess and needs to be torn down to the studs.
And guess who'’s been saying this for years? You and me, my friends! What if we were

silenced and thrown in jail just for speaking the truth?
Defending Free Speech and Democracy:

This unconstitutional bill is a direct attack on our First Amendment rights - our right to
free speech and our right to address grievances. Don’t fall for the propaganda from those
commie news agencies; this is about protecting our voice and our right to vote. And let’s
set the record straight - we are a constitutional republic, not a democracy. If they want a
democracy, they can get the hell out of the U.S.

The Fight Against Injustice:

This is just the beginning. We won’t back down. We’re not suing Governor Lombardo to
play some political game; it’s a 1983 case, and we have to follow the process. It’s nothing
personal. It’s just how it has to be done. The same goes with Cisco Aquilar. These two must
be sued in their professional capacities. So don’t believe the hype or propagandists who





are saying we are trying to split the party, as that’s utter B.S. One can not sue the “State”
in a 1983 case, they have to sue the Governor.

Don’t Let our Voice be Silenced:

This law must be defeated. We can’t let them silence us. Don’t buy into the propaganda
from these commies; this is about protecting our right to vote and our freedom of speech.
Our elections are a disaster, and it’s time to exercise our rights. Anyone who harms an
election worker deserves punishment, but guess what? Laws already exist for that. This bill
is a twisted perversion of law under the guise of worker safety.

As Frederic Bastiat said, “When plunder becomes a way of life, men create for themselves a
legal system that authorizes it and a moral code that glorifies it.” We can’t let this stand in
America. Criminals hide behind laws like these.

Conclusion:

Not one election worker has been assaulted in Nevada, this is straight up the
weaponization of our legal system our founders warned us about. It can not stand. Know,
this is just the beginning of our battle against SB406. Make no mistake, we will take this all
the way to SCOTUS if needed. If they do this in Nevada, they will do it everywhere. We’re
fighting for our rights, for the integrity of our elections, and for the freedom to speak our
minds. We won’t be silenced or intimidated. Our goal is to ensure that every American can
exercise their right to vote without fear and to preserve the fundamental principles that

make our nation strong.

This is the first of several lawsuits we are filing. Enough is enough. Next, we will be suing
these so-called servants in their individual capacities. We’re coming for the corrupt. We will
win. I’'m right again.

Beadles
P.S.

You won’t believe what we just finally put all the pieces together on. Monday, we will start
exposing the people who I've again been right about all along. You wanted proof, it’s

coming.
P.P.S.

Here’s the Nevada Globe’s article on our lawsuit against SB 406:





https://thenevadaglobe.com/fl/exclusive-lawsuit-filed-against-lombardo-and-aquilar-
over-election-worker-protection-bill

Nevada Globe X
@NevadaGlobe - Follow

A little early for fireworks, but...

EXCLUSIVE: Lawsuit filed against @JosephMLombardo
@CiscoAguilar over "Election Worker Protection Bill" #SB406

Plaintiffs: law is subjective, broad & "election worker" is
undefined. Conflicts with NV law and #1A.

thenevadaglobe.com

EXCLUSIVE: Lawsuit Filed Against Lombardo and Aguilar
Over Election Worker Protection Bill - Nevada...

5:25 PM - Jun 29, 2023 ®
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DISCLAIMER:
These thoughts, statements, and opinions are my own, not of any club, committee, organization,

etc.
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Hill'Insky Breaking The Law for your votes? Breaking The Law... Monum

()C) PERATION

Must Read & Share: Treason

Comrade Hill-Insky

by operationsunlight | Apr 22,2023 | Beadles Bombs

Share This Content

HILL-INSK






Howdy folks, our so-called elected county commissioner, Comrade Alexis Hill-Insky, who
allegedly beat beloved county commissioner Marsha Berkbigler, is showing her full-blown
commie agenda.

From what we’re told by Democrats and what we see here in the NRS and in the AG’s OML
Manual, it appears they maybe right!

Comrade Hill-Insky doesn’t want us, the people, to show up and speak out against her
bringing in the Soros-affiliated Elections Group.

Who is the Election Group? Here is a small taste.

Now what’s interesting is this initial move to bring in the Elections Group was defeated on
3/28/23 but then we’re told it was brought back illegally on 4/11/23 and then approved
with the help of a vote by newly appointed County Commissioner, Andriola, who is a
registered Republican but has voted in lockstep with commies Hill-Insky and Mariluz “/
sometimes live within my district when I’'m not banging your man too” Garcia.

Can someone remind Andriola she is supposed to vote with the Republicans, please?
Maybe instead of experiencing gender delusion, she is experiencing political party

delusion?
But I digress.
So why was it possibly illegal? Well...

Doing a quick search, | was able to find this:

“A motion to reconsider an item that has been voted on pursuant to NAC 385B.122: (a)
Must be made during the same meeting the vote was cast for the item; and (b) May be
made only by a member of the Board who voted affirmatively for the item, if the item was
adopted, or negatively for the item, if the item was not adopted. 3. A motion to rescind an
item specified in subsection 2 may be made at any time by a member of the Board. 4.
Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, a person may address the Board for not
more than 5 minutes concerning any motion under consideration by the Board.”

Now, I’'m not an attorney, but if that needed to happen to bring all those defeated items
back on the next agenda, it sure doesn’t seem like it happened to me.

What could this mean if they are right?





It could mean that Hill, Garcia, and Andriola, where they all voted to overturn the defeated
items and bring back all the pork spending on the Cares Campus, bringing in the Elections
Group, etc., may just beillegal, as we’re being told!

If so, how does this go unaddressed?

Do they plan to sweep this under the rug like Brown Stain’s BS Budget and where all the
money really goes?

Now back to Comrade Hill-Insky.

At the liberal-at-best RGJ, they, as usual, throw cover for all things county or elections.
This time it was for Comrade Hill-Insky, saying and | quote, “/ do believe this is the right way
to run a meeting - | think this is the right move for our county,” then she goes on to say, “But
things can always change so we’ll take it one day at a time.”

Full stop, so disregarding the will of the people, potentially breaking the law, is the right
move for We the People?

Things can change, so we’ll take it one day at a time?

Does she not know the NRS requires proper notice to We the People? She’s just going to
work with Eric Brown Stain and change things day by day?

This is what you would expect from a commie, hence her new name forevermore, Comrade
Hill-Insky.

Now to make things worse, according to the NRS, her actively being a commie and having

Soros-affiliated people show up en masse could very well be against the law.
Read the NRSs here.
NRS 203.010-119

This isn’t the first time she’s told people and groups to show up in opposition to us locals,

either.

As you can see from the below information request, she is asking for people to show up

and speak out against free and fair elections!

As you can see, Comrade Hill-Insky asked the Washoe Dems, and God only knows how

many other groups to show up, don’t take it from me. Read her own words for yourself.





Att'ments Serial Subject £
* |109 Inbound Meeting links for morning/afternoon session of PIT Count (volunteer) Briefings
» 110 | Inbound Meeting links for morning/afternoon session of PIT Count (volunteer) Briefings
» 111 The article I referenced yesterday
112 Re: Date for Screening and Panel of Misdemeanor Film
113 |Date for Screening and Panel of Misdemeanor Film
= |114 2nd Public Workshop NAC 62B and NAC 62H
i 115 2nd Public Workshop NAC 62B and NAC 62H
116 Re: Action Alert! Voting Rights Under Attack in Washoe County!
; v
. 41 5 T <IN T -
To : Hill, Alexis
CC:

Subject : Re: Action Alert! Voting Rights Under Attack in Washoe County!

Message Preview Attachments

On Feb 17, 2022, at 7:26 AM, Hill, Alexis <AHill@washoecounty. gov> wrote: ~

ey

I asked for the Dems to send this message out. I've been working to get the word out on this since I saw the resolution on our
agenda yesterday. Please forward to your friends and respond to the call with your opposition. Thank you for your engagement. We
need you now more than ever with folks trying to take away our voter rights! eSS

Thanks!

Alexis Hill v

Now I’'m just giving you a taste, we’ll give you much more later, but for now, this alone
shows she was working with groups to bring about opposition! NOT discussion. She’s
supposed to be a commissioner, not an activist! If something bad happened, someone
were to get hurt, someone to storm the building, it would ALL be on Comrade Hill-Insky as
seen there in her own words! How is this not grounds for removal alone?

Don’t worry. We have sooooo much more, in case it’s not ©

Now we know that at that meeting, Soros-funded people showed up for $60 an hour,
according to the great Hope, as seen here in her exposing it during public comment with
the fliers from the Soros-funded group.

In case you don’t know why Soros is such a bad guy, listen to him here on 60 minutes say
what he did to his own Jewish neighbors, with no regrets! This is his origin story, it only
gets worse from here!

To digress for a second, I’'m sure you know, we still have the UNDEFEATED $80,000
challenge to prove us wrong about our broken elections. In these documents, you will also
see Comrade Hill-Insky DID NOT WIN against beloved County Commissioner Marsha
Berkbigler. We know in communist countries, elections mean little. We saw that here in
2020 in the Hill vs. Berkbigler race. But guess what...

Marsha Berkbigler is running against Comrade Hill-Insky NEXT YEAR, and this time, it’s






going to be much harder for Hill-Insky to have the “help” she previously received.
Berkbigler will wipe the floor with Hill-Insky, | promise you.

Now back to breaking open meeting laws, as you know, she doesn’t allow clapping either.
At least when it’s not in her favor. This too is apparently a violation of the NRS and Open
Meeting Laws, as seen here and here.

There are also numerous court cases that say the same.
Here’s one for you as well.

But commies do what commies do, so we sent the information to Assistant District
Attorney Edwards and all the County commissioners this morning in hopes they will save
us from the commies.

| believe Mr. Edwards has been put in a tough spot over the years by these people and has
done the best he could. Know that | have much respect for Assistant DA Nathan Edwards
and hope he does right by us all. You know me, | don’t butt-kiss; | just tell it the way it is. If
someone does good, I'll praise them; if they do us wrong, I'll condemn them. | believe it’s
easier just to always tell the truth. | do respect him.

See the emails we sent here below:

From: Robert Beadles <REDACTED>

Date: Fri, Apr 21,2023 at 10:27AM

Subject: Alexis Hill Violations

To: <nedwards@da.washoecounty.gov>

Cc: Clark, Mike E. <MEClark@washoecounty.gov>, Herman, Jeanne
<JHerman@washoecounty.gov>, Hill, Alexis <AHill@washoecounty.gov>, Garcia,
Mariluz C. <MCGarcia@washoecounty.gov>, <CAndriola@washoecounty.gov>

Good morning,

Mr. Edwards, and commissioners, it has come to our attention via several first-hand
witnesses that Alexis Hill is potentially trying to incite a disturbance or potential riot,
according to NRS 203.010-119.

These potential crimes go from misdemeanor to felony not to mention a violation of

her oath of office.






We are told, and the witnesses are happy to testify, that she has been reaching out to
numerous groups to show up to Tuesday’s commissioner board meeting in support of
the George Soros-linked Election Group.

Why in the world would a so-called elected official do this?

For countless reasons, | can’t state how inappropriate and concerning this is. We
would appreciate you addressing this ASAP.

Additionally, Alexis Hill is violating our First Amendment rights, our rights prescribed
through the open meeting laws of the AG, and NRS statutes that allow clapping.
There are countless court rulings and case files | can cite if needed to show she is
acting as a dictator, not a chair for the commissioner.

Her actions are quite concerning, and we have over 700 people who are willing to file

a class-action lawsuit against her personally and the county.
This behavior is inexcusable.

Please address these tremendous issues and get back to us ASAP.

From: Robert Beadles <REDACTED>

Date: Fri, Apr 21,2023 at 11:45AM

Subject: Open Meeting Violation

To: <nedwards@washoecounty.gov>, <nedwards@da.washoecounty.gov>

Cc: <CAndriola@washoecounty.gov>, Garcia, Mariluz C.
<MCGarcia@washoecounty.gov>, Herman, Jeanne <JHerman@washoecounty.gov>,
Clark, Mike E. <MEClark@washoecounty.gov>, Brown, Eric P.
<EPriceBrown@washoecounty.gov>, Hill, Alexis <ahill@washoecounty.gov>

Mr. Edwards,

In addition to the previous email, it appears Eric Brown has removed opening public
comment from Tuesday’s meeting. This is in violation of the NRS 241 as well as
the AG’s Open Meeting Manual as well as many court cases that could be cited.

Please add the opening public comment back to the agenda as required by law. We

also request a full investigation into every penny Eric Brown has touched of
taxpayers’ dollars since his time at the county.






| appreciate your attention to this, truly - we do. Please address and respond

immediately. Thank you in advance.

Now, as I’ve mentioned before, | have numerous Democrat friends, many of whom are
more conservative than some so-called Republicans, and they all tell me Comrade Hill-
Insky has lost her mind and is not representing them.

Many of them believe there should be open dialogue between the people and public
servants, and what Hill-Insky just did, they don’t support it or Comrade Hill-Insky anymore.

So now, it’s up to us to continue to keep peaceful pressure on the board, the DA, and Hill.
Let’s remind them all peacefully that Brown Stain needs to be fired and investigated, and

Hill-Insky needs to be investigated and removed if she’s breaking the law.

Obviously, Commissioner Andriola needs to vote with the Republicans. Let’s see if she
does this time around. If it’s even allowed to be voted on! Who knows, maybe the
Democrats are right, and the new votes on all the defeated items should have stayed

defeated! We’ll see!

On this coming Tuesday, we’ll see if Hill-Insky and Brown Stain possibly break the Open
Meeting Laws right in front of us all by not allowing clapping, moving opening public
comment, and by even allowing a vote on the Election Group, etc., as we’re told it was
defeated, and her and Brown Stain bringing it back possibly wasn’t legal!

| look forward to seeing you Tuesday. If you can’t make it, let the County know how you
feel by emailing here:

Washoe311@washoecounty.gov

Or call and leave 3 minute or less message here:
(775) 328-2003

But both must be done by Monday at 4 pm.

One last thought, how in the world do Eric Brown Stain and Comrade Hill-Insky have the
power to silence 500,000 Washoe residents? Does that seem like America to you?

It sure doesn’t to me. Let’s send these two packing.






Remember, no clapping once we do ©

Beadles
P.S.

We have so much sunlight we will be putting on these so-called public servants. You got a
taste this week. If you didn’t read those 6 or 7, do it now. Next week will be very revealing
as well.

Sorry for the format of this post, | did it very rushed, | know it’s a bit sloppy, but you
deserve to know what’s going on as you certainly won’t get it from the local propaganda
papers.

See you Tuesday!
1001 East 9th Street, Reno
9:30am until whenever

ALSO, let’s support SB 405, to help clean up our elections. This is common sense stuff,
anyone against it is a commie.

Let our legislators add it to the hearing and pass it.





DISCLAIMER:
These thoughts, statements, and opinions are my own, not of any club, committee, organization,

etc.
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DECLARATION OF JAMIE RODRIGUEZ

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF WASHOE
I, Jamie Rodriguez, do hereby declare, under penalty of perjury, the following:
1. T am the Registrar of Voters in Washoe County, and have been performing that role
since 2022.
2. Robert Beadles’s claims that Washoe County has “unclean and grossly inaccurate

bR Y3

voting rolls,” “unapproved and unsecure voting systems,” that it “fail[ed] to train staff and
election officials,” there is “unequal treatment of signatures at the polls,” and there is

“illegal function within the election system,” are false statements.

JAMIE RODRIGUEZ
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DECLARATION OF SUZANNE HALDEMAN
IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANTS’ OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S SECOND

MOTION TO CHANGE VENUE

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF WASHOE
I, Suzanne Haldeman do hereby declare, under penalty of perjury, the following:
1. T'am a Legal Secretary for the Washoe County District Attorney’s Office.
2. Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of the email I sent on August 8, 2023, at
approximately 1:42 p.m. to Plaintiff Robert Beadles at the following email

addresses: robertbeadles@protonmail.com; beadlesmail@gmail.com. Attached to

the email was the proposed Motion for Sanctions regarding the Complaint filed in
Second Judicial District Court case number CV23-01283, removed to the United

States District Court District of Nevada, case number 3:23-cv-00382-ART-CSD.

S E HALDEMAN
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FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF NEVADA

CARSON CITY
* %%
ROBERT BEADLES, an individual,
Plaintiff, Case No. 23-OC-00105 1B
VS. Dept No. D1

JAMIE RODRIGUEZ, in her official
capacity as Registrar of Voters and in her
personal capacity; the WASHOE COUNTY
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS, a government
agency; ERIC BROWN in his official
capacity as WASHOE COUNTY
MANAGER and in his personal capacity,
ALEXIS HILL in her official capacity as
CHAIRWOMAN OF WASHOE
COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS and in her personal
capacity; WASHOE COUNTY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada, and
DOES I-X; and ROE CORPORATIONS I-
X.

Defendants.

ORDER DENYING PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO CHANGE VENUE

PROCEDURAL HISTORY
On July 25, 2023, Plaintiff Robert Beadles (“Beadles”) filed a Complaint against the
Washoe County Registrar of Voters Jamie Rodriguez (“Ms. Rodriguez”), the Washoe

County Registrar of Voters, Washoe County Manager Eric Brown (“Manager Brown”),
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Chairperson of the Washoe County Board of County Commissioners Alexis Hill
(“Commissioner Hill”), and Washoe County (collectively “Defendants”) in Second
Judicial District Court case number CV23-01283. That Complaint contained two causes of
action arising under federal law, and two causes of action arising under Nevada law. On
August 3, 2023, Defendants removed that case to the United States District Court District
of Nevada, case number 3:23-cv-00382-ART-CSD. Beadles subsequently voluntarily
dismissed this case.

On August 4, 2023, Beadles filed the instant case, alleging the same State law causes
of action, against Defendants in the Second Judicial District Court, case number CV23-
01341. Following briefing on a Motion to Change Venue, on September 13, 2023, the
Second Judicial District Court granted the Motion and transferred the case to this Court.
Shortly thereafter, Beadles filed another Motion to Change Venue requesting this Court
transfer the case to Lyon County, Nevada.

FINDINGS OF FACT

Having reviewed the filings in this case, and having considered, without limitation,
all evidence submitted by the parties to the Court, as well as the parties’ written arguments,
the Court makes the following findings of fact:

1. A District Judge in Washoe County determined on September 13, 2023, that
transferring venue to Carson City neutralized any impartiality that may have existed in
Washoe County while maintaining a venue that is convenient for the parties and witnesses.
Order Granting Change of Venue.

2. This transfer to Carson mitigated any prejudice caused by pre-trial publicity
or the status of the parties in Carson City.

3. The same media sources available to Carson City are available to residents of
Lyon County.

//
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4, In the present case, there has been some media coverage of both the
Complaint and Defendants’ response. However, it has not been so one-sided and pervasive
that it warrants a change of venue.

5. Coverage of this lawsuit by news sources such as the Reno Gazette Journal
or Nevada Appeal and news channels including KOLO, KRNV, or KTVN may extend to
people throughout Northern Nevada — almost certainly citizens of Carson City and Lyon
County receive some of their news through these sources. However, the limited number of
stories detailing the positions of both parties, primarily occurring in mid-August of 2023,
do support the allegation that Carson City has been so prejudiced against Beadles that a
fair trial could not be obtained.

6. Carson City has approximately 58,000 people. Lyon County is
approximately the same size.

7. Since the elections in 2020, allegations of election fraud have been in
forefront of the consciousness of communities across the nation, and communities within
Northern Nevada are no exception.

8. Commissioner Hill is an elected member of the Washoe County Board of
County Commission. Manager Brown and Ms. Rodriguez are appointed public officials in
Washoe County. Beadles is a member of the Washoe County Republican Central
Committee and a major donor to various conservative candidates and causes.

9. Although recognizable in local politics in Washoe County, there is nothing
about the status of either Defendants or Beadles that makes them particularly well known
in Carson City, which is the current venue of this case.

10.  This lawsuit alleging election fraud in Washoe County is undeniably political
in nature. However, the lawsuit alleges corruption specific to Washoe County, and the
transfer to Carson City mitigated any potential impartiality.

//
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CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

11. NRS 13.050(2)(b) permits a Court to change the place of a civil trial when
“there is reason to believe that an impartial trial cannot be had” in the county where the
complaint was filed.

12. The primary purpose of entertaining a change of venue on the grounds of]
impartiality is to avoid a biased jury pool. See e.g., Nat’l Collegiate Athletic Ass’n v. Tarkanian,
113 Nev. 610, 613-14, 939 P.2d 1049, 1051-52 (1997); Sicor, Inc. v. Hutchison, 127 Nev. 904,
266 P.3d 608 (2011). Two causes of action are identified in Beadles’s Complaint: (1) an

bR N1

alleged violation of constitutional rights regarding unanswered “petitions,” “equitable and
injunctive relief sought or writ of mandamus,” and (2) an action to remove Defendants
under NRS 283.440. The first cause of action is an equitable claim. “[T]he right to a jury]
trial does not extend to equitable maters.” Awada v. Shuffle Master, Inc., 123 Nev. 613, 618,
173 P.3d 707, 710 (2007). Likewise, there is no right to a jury trial for a writ of mandamus,
NRS 34.220. The second cause of action, a removal proceeding, is a summary proceeding
without the right to a jury. Jones v. Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct. of State, 67 Nev. 404, 418, 219 P.2d
1055, 1062 (1950). Because neither cause of action provides Beadles the right to a jury trial,
his concerns relating to the impartiality of a jury made up of Carson City residents are
immaterial.

13. Judges are presumed to be unbiased. Millen v. Eighth Jud. Dist. Ct. ex. Rel.
Cnty. of Clark, 122 Nev. 1245, 1254, 148 P.3d 694, 701 (2006). Additionally, “the bias and
prejudice of the judge is not a ground for change of venue, unless expressly made so by
statute.” State v. Second Jud. Dist. Ct. in & for Washoe Cnty., Dep’t 2, 52 Nev. 379, 287 P. 957,
960 (1930). Plaintiff’s allegations of some unidentified conflict do not support a change of
venue.

14. In evaluating a pre-voir dire change of venue motion, the Court considers

five factors: “(1) the nature and extent of pretrial publicity; (2) the size of the community;
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(3) the nature and gravity of the lawsuit; (4) the status of the plaintiff and defendant in the
community; and (5) the existence of political overtones in the case.” Nat’l Collegiate Athletic
Ass'n, 113 Nev. at 613-14, 939 P.2d. at 1051-52 (citing People v. Hamilton, 48 Cal.3d 1142,
774 P.2d 730 (1989)).

15. Although there has been media coverage of this case, the nature and extent
of the pretrial publicity in Carson City does not justify a change of venue. It has not been
particularly one-sided, nor has it been pervasive or so inflammatory that it could prejudice
the entire community. The first Tarkanian factor does not support a change of venue.

16. Both Carson City and Lyon County have populations of nearly 60,000.
There 1s no evidence that an impartial jury, if required, would not be able to be seated in a
community the size of Carson City. As such, the second Tarkanian factor does not support
a change of venue.

17. The First Judicial District Court has been specifically designated to hear
elections matters. See NRS 293.127565(4); NRS 293.12795(3); NRS 293.174; NRS
293.127565; NRS 293.200(9)(a); NRS 293.252(7)(b). It is also designated as an alternative
venue to hear actions against the State of Nevada and its departments. NRS 41.031(2). This
Court has ample experience with elections and government defendant cases. The claims in
this case alleging election fraud are well suited to be heard in this Court. Further, the
nature and gravity of this case would be weighed no differently in Carson City than it
would be in Lyon County, given the allegations relate solely to Washoe County. The third
Tarkanian factor does not support a change of venue.

18. The Defendants are elected and appointed public employees in Washoe
County. Beadles is a member of the Washoe County Republican Central Committee and a
major donor to various conservative candidates and causes. Although their status may
have been significant to the ability to seat an impartial jury in Washoe County, there is no

//
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evidence they are particularly well known outside Washoe County. The fourth Tarkanian
factor does not support a change of venue.

19. Last, factor five contemplates the existence of political overtones in the case.
This lawsuit alleging election fraud in Washoe County is undeniably political in nature.
However, the lawsuit alleges corruption specific to Washoe County, and the transfer to
Carson City mitigated any potential impartiality. The overarching political nature of the
lawsuit realleges similar claims of election fraud that have been presented in communities
across the nation over the last three years, and that broad political overtone will not be
mitigated by moving this case to a different venue. The fifth Tarkanian factor does not
support a change of venue.

20. None of the five Tarkanian factors support a change of venue. There is no reason
to believe that an impartial trial cannot be had in Carson City.

Therefore, based on the above Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law made by
this Court, and good cause appearing:
//
//
//
//
//
//
//
//
//
//
//
//
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiff’s Motion to Change Venue is DENIED.

Dated:

Submitted on ,O%tober 4, 202/3\by:

1strict Attorney
One South Sierra Street
Reno, NV 89501
lliddell@da.washoecounty.gov
(775) 337-5700

REPRESENTING DEFENDANTS
JAMIE RODRIGUEZ, WASHOE
COUNTY REGISTRAR OF VOTERS,
ERIC BROWN, ALEXIS HILL,

and WASHOE COUNTY

JAMES T. RUSSELL
DISTRICT JUDGE
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